$250,000 Allergy Study Grant Received By Research Institute

The largest grant ever received by the Research Institute of the hospital has been awarded by an anonymous St. Louis donor. The grant, amounting to $250,000, will be used by Dr. Herman T. Blumenthal, director of the Institute of Experimental Pathology, for studies on the effect of allergies on blood vessels in the brain and spinal cord. Funds from the grant will be awarded in $25,000 annual installments.

Dr. Blumenthal explained that the allergies under study won’t be those normally associated with dust, food, or pollen. “We will study those allergies which result when normal components of the brain or spinal cord drift into the blood stream,” he said.

“In the last five or ten years,” he continued, “there has been an increasing awareness of the effect of such allergies, which originate internally, on blood vessels. It is known that their effect can cause serious diseases of the heart and kidney. Our main interest now, however, is to determine whether certain known diseases of the brain and spinal cord can be caused by the same mechanism.

Multiple sclerosis and other diseases of the nervous system which were formerly laid to hereditary or unknown environmental influences are now suspected as being caused by the effects of allergies.

Mrs. Aline Berns, a research assistant, is working with Dr. Blumenthal during the initial stages of this new study. Dr. J. G. Probstein assisted in obtaining the grant.

Six research associates and assistants and five technicians are working with Dr. Blumenthal in his 14 research projects. About 45 of the hospital’s attending physicians also participate in the research projects.

Auxiliary-Aided Blood Bank Opens With Latest Equipment, Gleaming Quarters

After several years of planning, Jewish Hospital’s new Blood Bank opened Sept. 15. Located on the ground floor near the Forest Park Ave. entrance, the bank was furnished and equipped with a $20,000 gift from the women’s auxiliary.

The modern equipment available in the bank includes an automatic pump to draw blood from the donor’s arm; a “reach-through” refrigerator to transfer plastic bags of freshly draw blood from the donor room to the processing room; a refrigerated centrifuge machine for making fresh-frozen plasma; and a walk-in refrigerator for serum storage. Brightly colored chairs fill the Bank’s waiting room.

The initial supply of 75 pints of blood required for stocking the new bank was obtained through donations from the board of directors, medical staff, house staff, women’s auxiliary members, hospital personnel, and friends.

Formerly, blood administered to patients was received from the Red Cross Regional Blood Center upon the basis of pre-established eligibility of patients receiving blood.

It is expected that all blood will be replaced by volunteer donors, although Red Cross service will continue for those who are eligible for Red Cross blood replacement.

Relatives and friends of patients who receive transfusions should arrange for replacement within a week if the patient is a St. Louis area resident, or within two weeks if the patient lives outside the St. Louis area.

The hospital asks that two pints of blood be replaced for each of the first three pints received by transfusion. After the first three pints of blood have been replaced, they need only replace one unit for each additional pint used.

Reasons for the two-to-one ratio are simple: some patients receive such quantities of blood that it is impossible to replace; some blood contains defects which will make it unusable, and a Blood Bank shortage may exist when patients choose to pay for the blood they receive rather than replace it.
1959 United Fund Campaign
Here Yields Record Response

After two weeks, the hospital's United Fund drive has exceeded its 1959 goal of $8,400 by 15 percent. The drive will end November 18.

At least half of the hospital's 32 United Fund "team captains" had reported 100 per cent employee contributions in their departments by October 28.

In 1958, total United Fund collections in the hospital were $3,197; in 1957, $3,110, and in 1956, $3,006. Unofficial current total is $3,850.

Campaign co-chairmen are Mrs. Adele Steiber and Mrs. Jane Kopit, Personnel Department, and Robert Rubright, Director of Public Relations. A nine-member executive committee as well as the "team captains" are supervising employee solicitations in the record drive.

The goal of the United Fund of Greater St. Louis is $8,600,000, for the support of 122 agencies providing training programs for the handicapped and mentally retarded, counseling, medical and nursing care, shelter for the aged, assistance for those affected by disaster, care for dependent children, and programs for youth.

Last year, Jewish Hospital received $207,861 from the United Fund, one of the ten largest appropriations made in 1958. This money is used to subsidize, in part, operation of the Aaron Waldheim Clinics, social service department, chronic disease and rehabilitation divisions, and cost of care to service in-patients.

Dr. Herbert A. Mazur Dies Suddenly

Staff members, employees, and friends were grieved at the sudden death of Dr. Herbert A. Mazur on August 23.

Dr. Mazur attended University City High School and Washington University, where he received his medical degree. He was first associated with Jewish Hospital in 1944 when he served his internship here. After completing a residency at St. Louis University, where he received his M.D. degree from Washington University in 1955. He interned at JH from 1955-56, and then returned to Yale to complete a three-year psychiatric residency — in June 1959.

As a research biochemist, he is working with Dr. Herman T. Blumenthal, director of the Institute of Experimental Pathology, on a research project seeking to develop new drugs for the treatment of leukemia. The three-year project is being underwritten by a grant from the Leukemia Guild of Missouri and Illinois.

Dr. Diuguid is married and has three children.

From "south of the border" comes Dr. Benjamin Rosenblüt, who is serving a one-year otolaryngology research fellowship under Dr. Ben H. Senturia, director of the Department of Otolaryngology.

Born in Santiago, Chile, Dr. Rosenblüt received his M.D. degree from the University of Chile in 1951. He was clinical otolaryngologist at the Hospital del Salvador from 1951-53, and held the same title at the Hospitale San Juan de Dios from 1953-55.

He came to St. Louis in 1956 for a one-year research fellowship at the Institute of Otolaryngology at Central Institute for the Deaf. He returned to Santiago and resumed work at the Hospitale del Salvador, also serving as assistant to the professor of otolaryngology at the University of Chile.

At JH, Dr. Rosenblüt works in the ENT clinic and audiology, and assists in research projects in the surgical rehabilitation of hearing and in audiology.

He, his wife and two young daughters reside in Clayton.

Volunteer Hours Are Defined

In a story appearing in the last issue of "216" about volunteer hours, the hospital did not correctly state these were hours worked this year. The figures actually represented volunteer hours accumulated from the date a volunteer began her service to the hospital.

It was also reported that Mrs. Sylvan Agatstein had donated a total of 3,000 volunteer hours. This credit should have gone to Mrs. Theresa Agatstein.
NURSES MOVE INTO NEW RESIDENCE

"Operation Moving Day" was Sept. 3 when 47 student nurses moved into their new home at 4949 Forest Park. Purchased and remodeled with a $100,000 donation from Mr. Sydney M. Shoenberg, this second residence for student nurses at JH was decorated under the supervision of Mrs. Lee Wallas. Each room has a walnut finished bed with bookcase headboard, lounge chair, combination desk-dresser and chair, bed lamp, and sink. A full-size modern kitchen on the third floor is equipped with an electric range and oven, refrigerator, garbage disposal, cabinets, table, and chairs. On the second and third floors are washer-dryer units. The residence has two lounges; one on the first floor where girls meet their guests, (above, right) and a sitting room on the second floor. A tea, Oct. 26, officially opened the new residence.

Auxiliary Dessert Begins "Season"

The Jewish Hospital Women's Auxiliary kicked off its fall season at Westwood Country Club October 16, with "an original Minna Milton skit" and an announcement that 100 new members had been added to the group.

The Milton stint, "The World of Suzie Wrong," was a "gentle satire" on daily activities of the more than 400 volunteers who donate their time and services to the hospital.

About 550 Auxiliary members attended the dessert luncheon and joined in a short business meeting preceding the entertainment.

The Auxiliary approved a by-law amendment permitting any member of the organization serving on the Council on Hospital Auxiliaries of either the American Hospital Association or the Missouri Hospital Association to serve as an ex-officio member of the Jewish Hospital Women's Auxiliary board. Mrs. Milton, who is vice-chairman of the A.H.A. auxiliaries' council, became such a member under the new amendment.

Various committee chairmen made the following reports:

1. The 1959-60 life membership project will furnish the hospital's largest operating room with equipment needed for heart-lung surgery.
2. Fifty per cent of Gift Gallery sales consist of service items—soap, shaving cream, tooth paste, etc. Over 15,000 volunteer hours were amassed in the Gift Gallery the first nine months of 1959.
3. The Coffee Shop, which began operations with one paid employee and volunteer help three years ago, now has a staff of 33 volunteers and 14 paid employees.
4. Mrs. Sophia Rosenkranz, director of volunteers, has initiated monthly orientation for new volunteers.

SEPTEMBER TEA HONORS 160 JUNIOR VOLUNTEERS

One-hundred and sixty junior volunteers who worked at JH this summer were honored at a September 27 tea in Steinberg auditorium.

Mrs. Harry Loeb, Women's Auxiliary president, greeted the guests. Mrs. Louis Gilden, co-chairman of the volunteer services committee, presented each junior volunteer with a certificate of merit and the American Hospital Association's auxiliary sleeve emblem. Mothers of the girls were guests.

"More than 75% of the girls received a service bar for 50 hours' volunteer work this summer," reports Mrs. Sophia Rosenkranz, director of volunteer services. "They worked in practically every area in which adult volunteers are used, and added much to the improvement of patient morale."

The group included students from Clayton, University City and Ladue High, Mary Institute, John Burroughs, and college girls.

WESTLAKE SPEAKER IS NAMED

The fourth annual Samuel B. Westlake Lecture will be given on Wednesday, December 2, 1959, at 8 p.m. in Steinberg Auditorium.

Guest speaker will be Joseph Edwin Hawkins, Jr., Ph.D., associate professor and director of research in otolaryngology at New York University Postgraduate Medical School. His subject will be "Lesions and Lessons from the Otoxic Anti-biotics."

Chairman of the Westlake Lecture committee is Dr. Ben H. Senturia, director of the Department of Otolaryngology.

The lecture will be open to the public.

Mrs. Elmer D. Abramson, board member of JH, was elected to a two-year term as president of the Women's Division of the Jewish Federation of St. Louis on September 29.

October - November 1959
Contributions received are used for research, appliances for the patient, new equipment, and other worthy un-
described purposes. (The Jewish Hospital Medical Center Auxiliary.

Contributions received during period May 25, 1959 to January 1, 1960.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO JEWISH HOSPITAL FUNDS

In Memory of

JOSEPH HERZENBERG Mrs. and Mrs. Byron Kamin Mr. and Mrs. L. C. Mindlin Mr. and Mrs. Louis G. Rothschild, Jr. Dr. and Mrs. Harold Schell

ELMA HILF Mrs. and Mrs. Eli C. Siegel

PEARL G. HOBORWITZ Mrs. and Mrs. Sidney Abramson Mr. and Mrs. Lester F. Ackerman, Jr. Mr. and Mrs. Solomon Agatston

ZELMA HILF Mrs. Alvin L. Bauman

A. J. EINBENDER Mr. and Mrs. Carl S. Baum

(Surgical Research Fund)

Dr. and Mrs. John H. Schick

W. W. HOFFMAN Mrs. and Mrs. Daniel J. Hertzel

CONTRIBUTORS


Mr. and Mrs. J. Henry Schweich
Mr. and Mrs. Bernie Hirsch
Dr. and Mrs. Harry Rosenbaum
Dr. and Mrs. A. J. Reiches
Dr. and Mrs. I. C. Middleman
Mr. and Mrs. Rodrick J. Lewin
Dr. and Mrs. Joseph B. Kendis
Dr. and Mrs. Joseph Gitt
Dr. and Mrs. Clarence T. Eckert
Dr. and Mrs. Arthur R. Bortnick
Mr. and Mrs. M. L. Flotken
Mr. and Mrs. Ben Ragin
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin H. Hoelscher
Miss Doris Hoelscher
Mrs. Fritz Marx
Mr. and Mrs. Victor Friedman
Miss Doris M. Hoelscher
Mr. and Mrs. Harold Dubinsky
Mr. and Mrs. Milton Price
Dr. and Mrs. B. Markowitz
Mr. and Mrs. J. B. Charak
Dr. and Mrs. Arthur R. Bortnick
Mr. and Mrs. Max R. Davidson
Edwin Schiele
Mrs. Frieda S. Novoson
Mr. and Mrs. Sam Shanfeld
Mrs. Fred A. Fligman
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel Binowitz
Mrs. Harry L. Franc, Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Milton E. Freund, Jr.

(Contributions to this Fund may be

In Memory of Donor

Mr. and Mrs. Albert Amdt
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Greensfelder
Mr. and Mrs. Herman C. Seldin
Dr. and Mrs. Milton H. Jasper
Mr. and Mrs. Max W. Kramer
Mr. and Mrs. Boysie Sarnoosh
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Signer

Mr. and Mrs. J. B. Charak, III

Mr. and Mrs. Samuel Binowitz
Mrs. Leo S. Bauman
Mrs. Alvin L. Bauman
Mr. and Mrs. Harry Rosenbloom

An introduction for the benefit of the patient

MRS. JACOB LEVY 1880-1959, MOTHER OF MR. AND MRS. PETERSON, SR.

Dr. and Mrs. Jerome Kalishman
Dr. and Mrs. Marshall Greenman
Mr. and Mrs. Max Schneider
Mr. and Mrs. Donald K. Ross
Mr. and Mrs. John Roos
The Yavitz Family

Mrs. Fred A. Fligman
Mr. and Mrs. Ted J. Buell
Mrs. Hattie Loble
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin B. Meisner, Jr.

Dr. and Mrs. Milton V. Hoberg
Mr. and Mrs. Oscar Brand

LEAH FRANK

Mr. and Mrs. Louis H. Jaser
Mr. and Mrs. Murray E. Weisberg
Mr. and Mrs. Arnold S. Block
Dr. and Mrs. Grover Liese
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph F. Ruwitch
Mr. and Mrs. Louis G. Rothschild, Sr.

Mr. and Mrs. Max W. Redlich
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Buhrman
Mr. and Mrs. Edward F. Schweich

Mr. and Mrs. Max W. Redlich
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Buhrman
Mr. and Mrs. Edward F. Schweich

Mr. and Mrs. Louis R. Putzel
Mr. and Mrs. Louis Rothschild, Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Louis Rothschild, Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. Edward F. Schweich
Mr. and Mrs. Max W. Redlich
Mr. and Mrs. Edward F. Schweich
Mr. and Mrs. Max W. Redlich
Mr. and Mrs. Edward F. Schweich

Mr. and Mrs. Dorothy M. Kluft
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Crane
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Martin

BENJAMIN SCHLESER

Mr. and Mrs. Charles B. Hunsicker
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Buhrman

MAURICE DREYFUS

Mr. and Mrs. Gordon Schorek
Published in the interest of the Jewish Hospital of St. Louis. 216 South Kingshighway. St. Louis, Missouri. Published by the United Fund of the Jewish Federation of St. Louis, in cooperation with the Health and Welfare Council and Group Hospital Service. John M. Shoenberg, President.

Robert Ruhrght, Director of Public Relations.

Shirley Stoyting, Editor.

Carol Paul, Associate Editor.

Photographs by Harold Ferman.
He visited psychiatric institutions, nurseries, kindergartens, camps and sanatoria in Leningrad, Moscow, Stalingrad, Rostov, Socchi, Yalta and Kiev.

"There are 5,000 psychiatrists in the Soviet Union," reports Dr. Kaplan, "as compared with 10,000 in the United States. They claim a good psychiatrist-patient ratio because they reportedly have fewer psychiatric patients than the U.S. Reasons for this may be based on different diagnostic categories employed in Russia.

Psychiatric patients in Russia are treated in specialized hospitals—there are no major psychiatric wards in general hospitals, he said. "Russians do not accept psychoanalysis at all. Their approach is mainly organic and physiological."

There are no social workers, psychotherapy is little-used, and psychologists have no clinical backgrounds. Major treatment used in psychiatric hospitals is sleep therapy (with or without drugs) and work therapy (really advanced occupational therapy for which patients are paid).

Dr. Kaplan will report on his findings at forthcoming meetings of the St. Louis Society of Neurologists and Psychiatrists, and students at the George Warren Brown School of Social Work at Washington University.

October - November 1959

Muscular strengthening exercises developed over the last seven years in the hospital’s Division of Rehabilitation may spark two of St. Louis’ leading basketball teams to bright new seasons.

Centers Clyde Lovellette of the St. Louis Hawks and Bob Nordmann of the St. Louis University Billikens have been performing controlled jumping, strength improvement, and endurance exercises under the watchful eye of physical therapist Bob Hickok. Dr. Stan London, a medical staff member and Hawks’ team physician, worked with Hickok while Lovellette exercised and gave medical approval to the program with Nordmann.

Before he began his exercises, Lovellette could reach ten feet, three inches in a standing jump. Now he hits ten feet 11 inches and, according to newspaper stories, is skillfully controlling the backboards in Hawks’ games. During his two-month exercise period, he wore a lead-weighted vest which first weighed 60 pounds, but was gradually increased to 155 pounds.

Nordmann, who at six feet, ten inches and 275 pounds, is 35 pounds heavier and one inch taller than Lovellette, is still working with Hickok and has increased his jumping ability seven inches in four weeks. “When he first started with us,” said Hickok, “he could jump to the top of the basket only. Now he jumps seven inches above it.”

The muscular accomplishments with Lovellette were the subject of a two-page feature story in a recent issue of Scope Weekly, a medical newspaper which reaches all practicing physicians in the United States.

The patients’ library recently received a collection of 300 French, German and English classics, donated by Mr. Max Cohn, 1725 Franklin Avenue, in appreciation of kindliness shown his brother, a former patient at the hospital.

WANTED: YOUR BLOOD

The Jewish Hospital Blood Bank can always use your blood. Won’t you please donate a pint of blood today?

Your blood will help in surgery, medical research, accidents, and can be used for many other purposes.

For an appointment, call Station 323 or stop by the Bank.
News Capsules

ADMINISTRATION . . .

Dr. David Littauer, executive director, has been elected to a second one-year term as vice-president of the Greater St. Louis Hospital Council. Dr. Littauer was appointed chairman of the committee on care of the chronically ill and aged of the American Hospital Association for a second year. He also has been made chairman of the American Hospital Association group of the liaison committee with the American Medical Association and the American Nursing Home Association for another year.

"Staff and Program Planning in the Care and Rehabilitation of the Chronically Ill" was the title of an address given by Dr. Littauer in September before the Chicago Institute for hospital administrators at the University of Chicago.

David Gee, associate director, read two papers before the American Hospital Association's institute on medical sociology in Atlanta, Ga., Sept. 28 and 29.

New personnel in the executive offices is Mrs. Joan Gerard, secretary to Dr. David Littauer.

Albert P. Ameiss, hospital controller, has been occupying "Cloud 9" ever since a certain six-week-old, red-haired miss entered his home October 2. Congratulations to baby Jane Elizabeth and her new mama and papa.

Continuing on a part-time basis as assistant to Dr. Albert F. Wessen, medical sociologist, William Barber will do research related to child psychiatry and nursing students.

Dr. Wessen, by the way is father of a new son, Timothy Eric, born Oct. 28.

James Hepner, administrative assistant, is attending the evening school of business and public administration at Washington U. Jim's aiming for his M.S. degree in business administration.

COMMUNICATIONS . . .

Imogene Glaze, message center clerk, returned to the job October 29th, after taking time off for the birth of baby Brian Douglas who arrived September 11.

Looking tanned and rested is Mrs. Jane Lending, communications supervisor, recently returned from a vacation tour of South America and Jamaica.

MEDICAL RECORDS . . .

Miss Marjorie Boulton, medical records librarian, attended the American Association of Medical Records Librarians' annual meeting at Minneapolis, October 14-16.

Baby Glenn Whitlock was welcomed to the home of Evelyn and Mark Whitlock on September 5. This is son number 3 for Evelyn, assistant medical records librarian.

HOUSEKEEPING . . .

Sympathy is extended to the family of Mrs. Martha Coleman, who died suddenly September 21. Mrs. Coleman had been with JH for 13 years, working as a seamstress in the sewing room.

REHABILITATION DIVISION . . .

New personnel in the division include Elizabeth Gladstone, occupational therapist, Nancy Blankenship, physical therapist, and Ann Feldman, rehabilitation therapist.

Dr. Franz U. Steinberg, director of the division, attended the recent meeting of the American Congress of Physical Medicine in Minneapolis.

Sally Pugh, hospital recreation director, attended the National Recreation Congress in Chicago in early October.

OUT-PATIENT DEPARTMENT . . .

Wedding bells were sounded for Susan Sarkasian, R.N., on August 23, when she became the bride of Mr. Richard McNeal.

Welcome back to Flo Hoffman, clinic supervisor, who's now well on the road to recovery after recent surgery.

HOUSE STAFF

Newest member of JH's house staff is Dr. Masami Kitano, junior assistant resident in surgery.

BLOOD BANK . . .

New personnel in our newest department are Millicent Rotman, secretary to Dr. Virgil Loeb, Blood Bank director; Loretta Tipton, hematology technician, and Pat Aedo, secretary in the hematology lab.

MANAGEMENT ENGINEERING . . .

Maurice D. Wolfe, assistant director, is scheduled to speak at the American Hospital Association's institute on central supply administration in Chicago on November 19. His topic will be "Research and Central Supply.”

PUBLIC RELATIONS . . .

Caring for baby Steven Mark, who arrived on September 29, is now the full-time job of Diane Gallant, former associate editor of "216.” Diane's replacement is Carol Paull, who formerly was secretary to the administrative assistant.

Robert Rubright, director of public relations, has been appointed director of news for the St. Louis Junior Chamber of Commerce.

MEDICAL STAFF . . .

"Around The World” might very well be the theme-song of two JH staff members who traveled to various points of the globe this summer... Dr. Louis L. Tureen spent several weeks in Europe, attending scientific meetings and visiting neurological clinics in Austria, Denmark, and Germany. He presented a lecture on convulsive disorders at the University of Tuebingen in Germany, and addressed the University of Hamburg on neurological disorders... South of the border went Dr. B. Y. Glassberg, to Brazil and Argentina. He spoke on “The Approach to Marriage” and “The Uses of Sex” before the human relations club of the Instituto de Ensino de Administracao Cientifica in Rio de Janeiro and presented a talk on "Marriage Counseling as a Tool of Medicine" at a meeting of the Social Medicine Section of the Argentine Medical Association in Buenos Aires...

Three members of JH's staff participated in the program of the 7th District of the American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists held in St. Louis in September. Dr. Melvin M. Schwartz spoke on

51 ARE GRADUATED FROM SCHOOL OF NURSING

Fifty-one students received diplomas at the 55th commencement of the Jewish Hospital School of Nursing at Temple Israel August 19. Dr. David Littauer, executive director, presided. Miss Edna E. Peterson, director of the School of Nursing and Nursing Service, presented the graduates to Sam C. Sachs, hospital vice-president, who conferred the diplomas. Rabbi Arnold S. Task of Temple Israel officiated at the invocation and benediction. Scholarships totaling $1,000 were awarded to two outstanding seniors. Miss Sheila Lisak received the JH Women's Auxiliary scholarship as highest-ranking graduate, and Mrs. Linda Swafford Constantine was given the Hattie Waldheim Scholarship for ranking second.
PERSONNEL . . .

Owen D. Fender of Fenton, Mo., assumed the duties of personnel director October 12. Mr. Fender is a graduate of the University of Florida, where he received a B.S. degree in business administration.

PHARMACY . . .

New clerk in the department is Miss Lynn Weiskotten. Lynn replaces Mrs. Polly Erwin, who moved to California.

Late summer vacations were taken by several pharmacy employees. George Horne, chief pharmacist, fished for trout at Bennett Springs; Curtis Young, pharmacist, visited Chicago; and John Boeckmann, messenger, toured the Lake of the Ozarks.

SOCIAL SERVICE . . .

Helen Ann Fedrick, stenographer, and Marilyn Maddux, caseworker, are new additions to the department.

CHILD PSYCHIATRY . . .

Members of the 3-North classroom are now publishing a newspaper called The Golden Eagle. The twice-monthly publication has news about science, sports, school, and fellow classmates plus some jokes and cartoons.

ADULT PSYCHIATRY . . .

The department was host recently to Dr. Thomas Main, director of Cassel Hospital, Ham Common, Richmond, Surrey, England and his wife, Molly. The Mains, who are both psychoanalysts, visited JH as part of a tour of leading psychiatric centers in the U.S. On October 25, Dr. Main spoke before a group of JH board and professional people at Westwood Country Club on experiences with a Therapeutic Community.

The Mains also visited the adult and child psychiatry departments of the hospital, conferring with administrative personnel.

Newest addition to the department’s work force is Sharon C. Hansen, secretary.

RADIOLOGY . . .

Graduation exercises for four students in the School of Radiologic Technology were held September 12. Receiving diplomas were Ruth Rose, Sue Harrison, Merdean Walker and Thomas Robinson.

September enrollees in the school are Judy Mertenz, LaNier Wilson, Delores Fields, Dortha Rowland, and Dolores Hodges.

INSTITUTE OF EXPERIMENTAL PATHOLOGY . . .

Dr. Herman T. Blumenthal, director, has been appointed chairman of the research committee in clinical medicine of the International Association of Gerontology. He is responsible for the program of the Fifth International Congress of Gerontology which will be held in San Francisco next August.

Dr. Sidney Goldenberg of the Institute and the Department of Medicine has recently been appointed to the Committee on Medical Education of the American Diabetes Association.

New research assistant, Marko Batali, joined the Institute staff in September, and will assist in studies on aging in the guinea pig.

SCHOOL OF NURSING . . .

Proud “mother” of 47 girls is Mrs. Margaret E. Moyer, who inherited her girls along with her position as director of the newly-opened Shoenberg Nurses’ Residence at 4549 Forest Park.

The 3rd District Student Nurses’ Association held its first meeting of the new term at the Moses Shoenberg Nurses’ Residence on October 6. Miss Judy Lightner, senior student nurse at JH, presided over the 300-member meeting.

ADMITTING . . .

New personnel in the admitting office include Audrey Sue Cohn and Dolores Kowal, admitting clerks; Mae Ellen Newburn, page, and Richard Kreutztrager, clerk.

PLANT OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE . . .

Helping keep the building in good running order are new employees George Bailey, carpenter; Leonard Forrester, fireman, and Alan Winters and Clarence McLaughlin, engineers.

BUSINESS OFFICE . . .

Mr. Patrick T. Bryan is new credit manager in the business offices. Formerly employment manager at Sel-Mor Garment Industry, Mr. Bryan is a member of the National Association of Accountants. He is married and has two children — Bobby, age 8, and Kathleen, age 3.

Other new personnel in the business offices are Mary K. Peare, posting clerk, and Ann Humphrey and Marie Allen, discharge clerks.

Long-Term Care is Discussion Topic

Officials from the United States Public Health Service and the Missouri Division of Health participated in a review of Jewish Hospital’s long-term care program at a two-day session at the hospital, October 5 and 6. Dr. David Littauer, executive director of Jewish Hospital, presided.

Among the visitors were Dr. Bernard D. Daitz, restorative services consultant in the chronic disease program of the United States Public Health Service, and Dr. H. M. Hardwicke, deputy director of the Missouri Division of Public Health.

The hospital’s Group Nursing unit now has a capacity of 9 beds, three more than previously. This service, first instituted at the hospital in 1955, allows patients to share the services and the cost of graduate nursing care on a “round-the-clock” basis. Information about Group Nursing may be obtained by calling the nursing office, station 222.
Strange Sounds in the Night? 
Miss Murray Knows Them All

After 30 years of working day shifts as senior switchboard operator at the hospital, Miss Peggy Murray has made a successful transition and has become a “night person.” During the past year she has been night switchboard operator from 11 p.m. to 7 a.m.

Miss Murray is a one-woman directional system during the wee small hours, calling herself “just a maid in the switchboard room.” When emergency or maternity patients enter the hospital through the Forest Park Blvd. entrance — the only entrance open after 9 p.m. — Miss Murray is notified first. She then calls either the night nurse supervisor or the night clerk who will meet the new patient. Miss Murray also does some switchboard bookkeeping work, chats with house staff members, doctors, and nurses who stop to say hello, and “plays around with figures,” her mathematical “habit.”

While of the opinion that Tuesdays and Sunday afternoons are the busiest switchboard days in the week, she can’t pinpoint the busiest night. “It depends on the clientele you have in the hospital,” she said. “If you have a serious accident or a very important person, you’ll have umptysteen calls.”

The night life has made Miss Murray footstep-conscious. “I know practically everybody by their footsteps,” she said, and that includes the occasional patient who will slowly shuffle by Miss Murray’s station behind the first floor information desk. Interns are always the easiest to detect, she said, because “they know where they’re going and always walk with a solid step.”

She also is a pretty fair voice detector. “If you sit at the switchboard 31 years, you can tell a doctor’s voice,” she said, admitting that in the wake of the hospital’s rapid growth she sometimes has slipped, failing to recognize the telephone voice of one of the 350 members of the medical staff.

Miss Murray, who works every night except Friday and Saturday, is truly hospital-oriented. “I suppose I inherited hospitals,” she said, explaining that her father was a hospital administrator in Pittsburgh and her mother was later a night superintendent at a St. Louis hospital. One of eight children, Miss Murray prefers to administer kindness through the switchboard. As she put it, “there is no place else in the hospital.”

Annual Holiday Party Planned For Employees

The annual Holiday Party for all employees of Jewish Hospital will be held Friday, December 18, in Steinberg Auditorium, it was recently announced.

A buffet dinner and other refreshments are planned for the party, which will begin at 3:30 and last through 6 p.m.

Chairman of this year’s party is Robert Rubright, director of public relations. He will be assisted in planning and arrangements by Mr. Owen D. Fender, personnel director.

Employees who are scheduled to receive awards for long service to the hospital will not receive awards at the December party. A separate honors luncheon is planned sometime next spring. An announcement will follow in a later 216.

Patient Parties Spotlight Folk ‘Swingers’
From Israel, Television Songstress

Enjoying the talents of famous folk singers and popular supper club acts “free of charge” sounds too good to be true, but that’s what happens at the monthly parties held for JH patients in Steinberg Auditorium.

The first party of the fall season, held September 29, featured the present-day music of Israel. Guest entertainers were Ron and Nama, billed as “International Folk ‘Swingers,’” and discoveries of TV celebrity Ed Sullivan.

On October 28, patients enjoyed the songs of Fransiska, popular singer on KPLR-TV, and the music of Bonnie Ross’ orchestra.

These charity performances are arranged by the Women’s Auxiliary recreation committee, whose chairman is Mrs. B. S. Goldwasser.

Three-Year Nursing Scholarship Received
From Weil Foundation

A three-year, full tuition nursing scholarship has been received from the Weil Charitable Foundation, established by Mr. Richard K. Weil, former president of JH and life member of the board of directors.

The scholarship has already been awarded to a freshman student on the basis of need and scholastic potential. The name of the scholarship recipient is kept confidential.

NEW MEDICAL BOOKS

Following is a list of medical books recently added to the Sidney I. Rothschild Medical Library.

The Yearbook of Cancer, Clark and Cumley
Medicine, an Historical Outline, Seelig
Therapeutic Uses of Adhesive Tape, Johnson & Johnson
Gray’s Anatomy, Gray
Therapeutic Nutrition with Tube Feeding, Pareira
The Foot and Ankle, Lewin
Anatomy and Surgery of Hernia, Zimmerman and Anson